

The Mooring Mast



VOLUME XLI

FRIDAY, MAY 8, 1944 — PACIFIC LUTHERAN UNIVERSITY

NUMBER 26

G.J. Malmin Lists New Choristers

1948 Choir of West Is 'Heinz' Group; Montana Trip Slated

by Fritz Busching

Pres. Gunnar J. Malmin says this year's Choir of the West his "Heinz Chor" because it has 57 different varieties. There are 57 voices in the 1948-49 organization, one more than last year.

After several days of trying, Mr. Malmin selected 24 students to replace those lost by graduation. Actually, only nine of these are neophytes, the other 15 having belonged to the PLC Chorus last year. Thirty-three students from the 1947-48 Chorus returned this fall.

Already one can hear melodious sounds issuing forth from the Old Chapel, as the Lute slingers look forward to another successful season, including a tour through the Inland Empire-Rocky Mountain area shortly after the beginning of the second semester.

Sept. 24, 1948



LAST WEEK fire destroyed the PLC gymnasium. Dr. Seth Easton, president of PLC, declined to comment on future plans, but Physical Education classes for the coming 1948-49 school year will resume as previously scheduled.

Large Registration Over 100

The registration of P. L. C. was the largest since the reopening of the school this year and indications show that the total enrollment may go over 100 this year.

While the Normal Classes show the largest gain there is a surprisingly large number of students entering from other institutions in the college and high school groups.

Registration was quite formal with each student in turn meeting Presi-

dent Odal, Registrar Haase, and Treasurer Miss Knutson. Mr. Haase insisted with the schedules in straightening out conflicts.

It is surprising to note the great number of states represented in the school this year. Naturally the greatest group is from Washington but there are students from Minnesota, North Dakota, South Dakota, Idaho, British Columbia, Oregon and California.

Sept. 29, 1927

Editorials:

WELCOME, QUILCENE H. S. FOOTBALL TEAM

To the members of the Quilcene High School football team and coach: We, the students and faculty of Pacific Lutheran College wish to welcome you to our school in the hope that your stay here will be pleasant and profitable.

Saturday we will play football. In that game, your team and our team will do its best to win. We want to win. You want to win. The best team will, of course, win. If we win, we want to be good winners. If we lose, we want to be better losers. You feel the same way. The prime object is good sportsmanship and fair play.

Again, we wish to welcome you in the sincere hope that our relationships brought on by this contest will promote good feeling between your school and our school. Hail the winner of Saturday's game! — N. S. L.

Nov. 10, 1927

CHAPEL ATTENDANCE GOOD

Attendance at chapel has been good, and we hope it will continue. This speaks for something; it speaks for the fine interest which students are giving the administration in their execution of the purpose of this college—a sound Christian education.

We might feel that our school buildings are not of the best. But the new library which is now in the final stage of completion is symbolic of something. It symbolizes the advancement now taking place. The next steps will be directed toward a new athletic field, archery range, track oval and new tennis courts to build a girls' dormitory.

Oct. 30, 1940

Our First May Day Festival

In this age of razz, jazz and rah-rah entertainment, it is a relief to attend a program that will allow us to relax while enjoying it. Our May Day Festival was of this type. It was one of those rare festivities that leave a person rested and refreshed, a beautiful ceremony for which its sponsors deserve much praise.

While watching this ceremony, we could not help thinking what a blessing it would be to our school to have more entertainment of this type, and less of the clamorous, exciting kind. It is the peaceful, the harmonious, the beautiful in life that builds true men and women; not the noisy and boisterous. Until we learn this, and pay heed to it, we shall not—in spite of all our preaching—get far along the road to the citadel of character.

PLC BASKETBALL TEAMS VICTORS AT KAPOWSIN

Probably the Neatest Game and Team Work of the Season So Far Was Manifested by Boys' Team At Kapsowin by Means of Show Regular Players, Club Show Improvement.

FISHT, FLAT TIRES, BOLONEY, AND BEER

Riding over snow, mud, and boulders being packed to right enough to resemble asphalt in a salt barrel proved exciting and a little bit too thrilling for some on the wild ride to Centralia in a flat-top.

BETTER KEMMLER AND BETTER DENTON were highly entertaining on the way back by singing such songs as "Who Ate the Boloney" and "The Funeral of Dan Murphy," which made the students wish for beer on ice.

The students who didn't go to the game don't know it yet, but they nearly lost their prize yellers and both basketball teams, due to a tendency of the bus to land in a ditch every few yards, which, if said tendency had been fully executed, would have given all a free ride to "Kingdom Come."

The bus driver had a big heart and at the request of the students kindly and very considerately left the light off, which, of course, left them all alone and scared (?) in the dark. We know who appreciated the lack of illumination. How about it, Bill?

Well, anyway, an enjoyable ride was had by all.

"And so, I ate the boloney!"

Feb. 6, 1929

Ford Victor Over Horse In Debate

New Material For School Inter-Scholastic Team Uncovered; More Meetings Are Planned

The debate club's first argument resulted in a victory for the affirmative on the question, "Resolved that the Ford has contributed more to the advancement of contemporary civilization than has the horse, provided that the terms do not include Paul Revere's noble steed nor 'Brick' Morris's paddle-jumper."

Although the negative put up a brave fight for the horse, the affirmative put up a better fight for the Ford, fearing perhaps that in case the Ford lost out, the faculty might decree that all Fords now in use here be traded for horses.

The debate, although not a formal one, uncovered new talent in the student body and provided entertainment for the audience. The three-minute impromptu speeches by each debater called for quick thinking and organized thought.

Dec. 18, 1929



CONCERT BAND has record attendance for its annual Spring Concert in Parkland.—1893

Editorial**Changes at PLU Can Mean Progress**

Behind institutions such as PLU lie vital forces that give these structures life. What is often forgotten is that this same salient energy also shapes these organs to meet changing conditions.

That Pacific Lutheran University is in the grip of violent change is a fact that no one would deny. The peculiarity of the Christian college change, however, is that it has been compelled to change in order to meet countless revisions in society. It is absurd to believe that the whole world can erupt in chaotic alteration and the structure of a Christian institution remain identically the same.

PLU students who are in direct contact with the University for only four years also witness definite change in the short time they are on campus. It is only natural to form an opinion of this metamorphosis, judging it to be either progression or regression. It is not uncommon in student circles to continually hear the well-worn phrase "such and such has happened; the school certainly is going to pot."

Actually, as time goes on everything is forced into revision. History does not repeat itself; rather, new events keep taking place. The Christian sees this change as a progression toward an ultimate end. History has a purpose because God is somehow behind it as the director.

Could it be that the changes at PLU also have a purpose in the ultimate plans of God? As the *Moorings Mast* pauses this week to celebrate its fortieth anniversary, it is good to consider this question.

Each person has the freedom to interpret changes as he wishes. But one thing is certain: "*Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, today and forever.*" Christ is the cornerstone of Pacific Lutheran University. As long as this is not altered, changes at PLU can mean progress.

—Dick Finch

Professor Protests Drama Interview**Our Editor:**

I hope that I need not tell Dennis Piernicki "interviews" of Mr. Ellerson in last week's paper. It has been brought to me that this was just as it was John, whom only could was to criticize the play. I had to believe this as it would only cheapen an already unfortunate situation. Be that as it may, and speaking as a member of the large "out" group, I feel the — taken to the interview to be deplorable. The complete lack of fair play also appalled me. The editor should have at the least — space available to Mr. Ellerson, then and there, for his untempered comment.

There are, unfortunately, — other valid reasons for the speech department's not choosing a play purely on its literary merits. If the subject is open for public debate, however, it certainly should not be carried on in a tone of hysterical sarcasm, for this merely obscures, rather than illuminates, the issue. Before one accepts the validity of his —, the primary issue to consider, which Mr. Piernicki has as yet failed to do.

Don Reynolds,
Asst. Professor of English



By Doug Ellsworth

The Leveled Lance

Socialist Republic made a daring departure from tradition. It took a "soft" line toward the West in order to divert resources from foreign control and aggression to domestic needs. Under this policy Russia has not only suffered serious humiliations abroad, as one might expect, but failed on the domestic front as well. Consumer goods remained scarce, economic growth came to a standstill and the farm situation became truly desperate.

Meanwhile the Chinese communists bowed to the old Stalinist line, bending every ounce of energy toward Soviet aggression. The people suffered even more than the Russians under Stalin, but the Peking regime kept firm control at home while abroad it won a string of victories to match Moscow's defeat. It arrogantly attacked, conquered and holds to this day a strategic zone of India.

It pushed the RVN offensive in Southeast Asia with all its might. And everywhere it spread the seeds of violence. In return, nations after nation recognized Peking as the legitimate government of China; and this year it will probably be equal to — in the UN (India leads the non-Red-China movement). The Chinese point to the record to show that theirs is the "living" Communism.

Continued Chinese victory will have its effect on Russian thinking. Khrushchev may be strong enough — and old enough — to avoid answering to reactionary critics by his balance, but his successors will find it hard to argue with success.

Thus if we fail to stop the communists in Vietnam we will face our own longer, but a far more difficult, communist Web in the future.

MOORING MISSED!

by Miriam M. Niedling

Once again the Seniors graduate amidst the springtime peace and tranquility of maturing students and faculty. I would venture a hypothesis that this is the third straight year that I've heard gossip, extreme criticism and biased rumors concerning teachers and administration. Truly, it's getting very old and worn out.

No one can say who is right. Where two or three are gathered together, stories run rampant. We students, as thriving young intellectuals, have learned to investigate more than one or two secondary sources when evaluating an item. It seems hard to believe that this learning doesn't transfer into our everyday associations.

For example: Some of our clear-thinking, level-headed members of the Senior class have found it necessary to demonstrate the level of their one-track minds by not supporting the Senior Class gift. It seems they can't agree with some changes.

Apparently, they feel our university, which most of us believe is beginning to emerge as a first class institution of higher learning, is not worthy of their monetary contribution to the library. I'd be willing to wager that if these individuals would

go out of their way to find the truth, they'd reconsider.

Most of us have experienced moments of self-thought about certain alterations of the campus life. However, we do believe our university stands for the TRUTH. In old and new, religious and secular aspects. So far, is a DISSAIS NOT affected this principle.

Editor's Note: Any student with a sense of humor and ability to project it in writing is requested to make application to the editor for position as *Moorings Mast* columnist for next year.

The writer of this week's column, Miriam Niedling, will graduate this summer, thus creating the opening.

Staffers Sought For Mooring Mast

Seniors interested in working on the *Moorings Mast* staff for next year are requested to contact Dick Black, MM Editor. Several executive positions will be open and appointments will be made before the end of this semester.

Present MM staffers are requested to contact the editor concerning their position on next year's staff. A major staff re-organization is planned, thus allowing good opportunity for advancement.

Students will note that the faculty is offering a training course in Journalism and Writing. The class is for two hours credit and will be held in connection with *Moorings Mast* lab work. Milton Neavig, director of public relations, will be furnishing this course.



THE ENGAGEMENT RING WITH THE PERFECT CENTER DIAMOND

Keepsake*

True artistry is expressed in the brilliant fashion styling of every Keepsake diamond engagement ring. Each setting is a masterpiece of design, radiating the full brilliance and beauty of the center diamond . . . a perfect gem of flawless clarity, fine color and meticulous modern cut.

The name, Keepsake, is the ring and on the tag is your assurance of fine quality and lasting satisfaction. Your very personal Keepsake diamond ring is awaiting your selection at your Keepsake Jeweler's store. Find him in the yellow pages. Prices from \$100 to \$2500. Rings enlarged to show beauty of detail. *Trade-mark registered.

HOW TO PLAN YOUR ENGAGEMENT AND WEDDING

Please send two new booklets, "How to Plan Your Engagement and Wedding" and "Choosing Your Diamond Ring," both for only 25c. Also send samples of the 44 page book's book.

KEEPSAKE DIAMOND RINGS SYRACUSE, NEW YORK



MOORING MAST

The Voice of the Students of Pacific Lutheran University

DICK FINCH
Editor

DEE WHITE
Assistant Editor

BOY LEDGERWOOD, Business Manager; EILEEN HEHLUND, Feature Editor; DAVE SUNDBERG, Makeup Editor; BONNIE BRAATEN, GEORGE BEARD, Copy Editors; BOBBIE ENGETROM, Headline Editor; ERIC HEDBERG, Book Review Editor; PAUL REICHTAD, Advertising Manager.
STAFF: Chris Sorenson, David Ellerson, Peggy Ogden, Paul Drost, Peggy Ann Zander, Al Bowens, Craig Sture, Gary Lantz, Bill Erickson, Louis Tharrel, Jim Hassel, Marion Tippins, Dale Mooney, Beverly Ellington, Jim Stanitsch, Arlo Larson, Ed Davis, Mike McDonald, Kay Losonciak, Ray Helms, E. L. Erickson, Bob Anderson, Paula Carlson, Sharron Larson, Jon Mitchell, Carol Behnke, Kaye Whaler, Adele Kubota, Carol Krummel, Sharon Rice, Linda Morris, Peggy Weisner, Karen Katsuyama, Bertie Swanson, Ken Curtis, Gordon Wabell, Christy Arnold, Jimi Johnson, Marie Helling, Tat King, Dale Hong, Greg Karlgaard, Miriam Mandeling, Gary Habensuk, Becky Olson.

Science Undergrads Conduct One-of-a-Kind Experiment

By Mark Elgren

Within the strange world it is known that small organisms can receive learned information from other animals of the same species. The reason for this phenomena is believed to be related to a transference of nucleic acids from one organism to the other. Currently, two PLU psychology majors, John Burke and Lee Shannon, are working on a experiment that should determine which nucleic acid is responsible for this.

Starting with what was a class project, they have greatly expanded their work until it now is the Plautia Research Center, with most of the apparatus housed in Room 111 Hall. Their experiment involves the classical conditioning of a planaria, a small animal often used for such purposes.

By confronting the organism with a specific stimulus, the student tries to manifest erratic behavior. When this is achieved, the animals are then severed into pieces and fed to other planaria; only those have not learned to react to the same stimulus.



JOHN BURKE (left) and Lee Shannon conduct their daily experiments in conditioning planaria. Results of the experiment will be published in several national periodicals.

The climax is reached when the worms are exposed to the non-tasted bacteria. The result—their organisms begin to show the exact symptoms as the previously trained ones did.

According to the students' advisor, Walter Albrecht, professor of psychology, much research has

been conducted successfully since 1960. However, he estimated that this is the only one of its kind that is now being conducted in this the United States by undergraduates. As a rewarding after-thought, several national periodicals have agreed to publish their findings upon its completion.

Lodge Favored

By Dale Haag

The selection of a Republican presidential candidate is this year's big political question mark. Nelson Rockefeller and Barry Goldwater are the two announced candidates, while Henry Cabot Lodge, Richard Nixon and William Scranton are "unannounced" candidates. The problem arises, as none of the candidates, announced or unannounced, have a clear majority of the electoral votes.

In a special survey conducted by the Mooring Mast, 100 PLU students pick the Republican presidential nomination outcome as follows:

Lodge	18%
Rockefeller	29%
Goldwater	24%
Nixon	11%
Scranton	3%

A MOORING MAST logo was a part of the original 1924 PLU Student News newspaper. Used to anchor dirigibles, which were a revolutionary step in transportation at the time, a Mooring Mast was considered an appropriate name for the newspaper. The dirigible drawing, above, headed a humor column in the original newspaper.

Mooring Mast History Revealed; Celebrates Fortieth Anniversary

By Neil Martinson

MM Feature Editor

Pardon us for a moment while we reminisce.

This year of the Mooring Mast commemorates 40 years of service to PLU through the newspaper medium. The front page of this issue is a collection of rather average old stories from the newspaper's file of old Mooring Masts.

Very recently this school year a group of students decided that the school was finally large enough for a newspaper.

Students of the day as well as some others in the spirit of the earlier Mooring Mast for the PLU newspaper. But in 1924 when the newspaper was organized, it was a logical move to choose. It was felt that the country was excited about a "flying than air" move of the day—dirigibles.

Three dirigibles could be had to the ground like modern airplanes, so far distances for these "blimps" all over the country speeds were concentrated. One of these went, which were known as dirigible裁, was built on the prairie south of Spokane, and Fort Lewis became the first American dirigible, the Shenandoah, anchored there.

In 1921, at the height of the dirigible craze, PLU students contributed to the growing word in a campus newspaper.

DIRECTER THAN AIR



A MOORING MAST logo was a part of the original 1924 PLU Student News newspaper. Used to anchor dirigibles, which were a revolutionary step in transportation at the time, a Mooring Mast was considered an appropriate name for the newspaper. The dirigible drawing, above, headed a humor column in the original newspaper.

When choosing a name for PLU's newspaper, dear advertising journals, we were naturally inspired by the silhouette of the ~~mooring mast~~ mast rising from the prairie.

What better name could be given the newspaper than Mooring Mast? Just as the ~~mooring mast~~ mast for dirigibles were destined to become a symbol of community interest throughout the nation, dispensing information to all sectors as would the PLU newspaper before the nation of news and ideas in PLU. And only the PLU Mooring Mast survived the vicissitudes of time—the originals died from disease.

Occasionally students wonder if the ~~name~~ of the paper could be changed to something more meaningful. But who changes out of the main ~~newspaper mast~~ mast in the country? A sensible name may not be as ~~directer~~ as a ~~mooring mast~~ mast, but it does have the tradition of an adventurous ~~name~~.

All of this is not to say that the Mooring Mast would not consider changing its name. Such an idea would pose problems. One student asked why the "Mooring" Mast names out in the afternoon. The ~~newspaper mast~~ mast the ~~Mooring Mast~~ comes from the Seattle University Spectator as addressed to the Mooring Mast.

During all that years from now the PLU papers will still be titled Mooring Mast. And occasionally the paper will give up right back to some to the student body.



DURING his eleven years at PLU, Dr. Kristen Solberg's duties have been numerous. He has served as a professor of psychology, chairman of the Dept. of Psychology and Dean of Students.

Dr. Kristen & Solberg, Dean of Students and chairman of the Psychology Department at Pacific Lutheran University, has announced his resignation effective on the school year. Dr. Solberg has accepted a position as ~~assistant~~ director of the Mental

Studies Pursued By PLU Faculty Members

by Kaye Whilder

That "Pacific Lutheran University is a community of professing Christian scholars" is evidenced by several professors on campus who will be spending next year, or more, in advanced study. All seem to participate in education without gradation.

Dr. Charles Additon, professor of chemistry, is conducting post-doctoral study at the University of Alberta with a National Science Foundation Science Faculty Fellowship. Advanced course work and research no longer remain.

Chairman of the department of music, Dr. Louis K. Christensen, has been appointed the First Bernadett Fellow of the American Scandinavian Foundation. The appointment is for post-doctoral study of contemporary music in Scandinavia, and was announced by Peter H. of New York, president of the Foundation.

Sunday Electron, amateur professor of speech, has received a grant from the American Lutheran Church to aid in completion of study for the Ph.D. degree at the University of Oregon. His work will be done in the speech department with an emphasis on theater.

Rev. Stewart Govitz, assistant professor of religion, will be granted his further study in completing his doc-

toral program. Part of this research will be done this summer at the University of Washington. As the Mooring Mast has already reported, Rev. Govitz's studies have created via the ILC and letters of Rosalie Langen, a Norwegian writer and dramatist.

Another professor of biology, Dr. John Kindred, will be completing a textbook during this summer and fall. He will also be studying at the Hancock Foundation in California, preparing for his research in the South Pacific. In spring, under appropriate provisions made by the National Science Foundation and the Atomic Energy Commission, Dr. Kindred and two students will do marine research work at Eniwetok.

John Martini, acting instructor in business administration, will be studying for the next three years in the arts of marketing at the University of Oregon. He will complete work for a Ph.D. in business administration.

"...a community of professing Christian scholars dedicated to a philosophy of liberal education..." is what PLU is, according to the new catalog. These scholars can be found on both sides of the lecture room and development of the University services nourishes from this scholarship in the form of the faculty.

Enzymes Are Topic of Lecture

Dr. Ernest W. Dool, who is the director of the bio-chemistry department at the Mental Health Research Institute at Tom Solberg, will lecture here Tuesday, May 12, on his work at the Institute. The title of his lecture, which will be given in S-108 at 7:30 p.m., will be "Enzyme Variants." The lecture is sponsored by the PLU Student Affiliate Chapter of the American Biochemical Society and will be of interest to students of both biology and chemistry.

Dr. Dool has provided the following abstract of his lecture:

"New physico-chemical methods

of investigation have enabled biology and medicine recently to distinguish among very closely related protein fractions previously considered homogeneous. Each living organism possesses a large number of different proteins and enzymes.

"Each of these protein fractions or enzymes may vary in its chemical constitution not only from species to species, but quite frequently also from individual to individual of the same species and even from organ to organ (organ specificity). These distinctive biochemical traits have been proved to be genetically controlled; they are biochemical expressions of multiple allelism."

Dr. Solberg Resigns; Accepts Research Position

Health and Mental Foundation Planning Committee for the state of Washington.

In his new position, Dr. Solberg will be assigned to research to develop new mental health programs within the state. This particular phase of the program was initiated by the Kennedy administration.

Dr. Solberg has named the following committee for the Mooring Mast:

"As chair of you who have been in my classes here board me say, I never have cared for the responsibility of administrative detail or of the publicity section. As the university grows it is clear and complete, this office (as it very properly should) becomes more burdened in administration. In consequence, the hours burdens and the ~~burden~~ of responsibility extends in the direction I am

most interested in following. Several opportunities were offered this year, I took a look at my age and decided that this is the time I should make a change.

Dr. Solberg received his doctorate in cognitive psychology from the University of Wyoming in 1959. In the same year he came to PLU as chairman of the Psychology Department. Dr. Solberg and his postdoctoral training in psychology at American Lake Veterans Hospital.

As an active member of the Pierce County Personnel and Guidance Association, this year Dr. Solberg is serving as president of the organization.



NEWLY ELECTED ASPLU president, Kent Hjelmervik, takes the oath of office from Chief Justice Alvin Henderson. In the background is Mike McIntyre, retiring student body president.

ALC Youth to Convene for Purpose Of Discussing World's Tensions

During hours of the day, including labor-management, social issues and international concern will be programmed in a series of religious instruction and worship when 10,000 youth of The American Lutheran Church meet in Cobo Hall arena, Detroit, August 18-23.

Scheduled to address the second triennial Convention of The ALC Juvenile League in addition to a long list of leading churchmen and theologians are:

Walter Roush, President of the United Automobile Workers, who is likely to be engaged in major auto industry negotiations during the same period;

Louis Lomax, famous author and lecturer, noted for his hard-hitting criticism of偏見 which he claims has failed to lead effectively in the American Negro's struggle for civil rights;

Sir Frankel Isidor, of Kenya, a leading political figure in that country's movement of independence last year who was a president of the World Council of Churches;

Some 500 youth from around the world will be invited to speak at round tables and read a prospectus.

The Rev. L. David Brown, youth director of The ALC, said justification for holding a massive youth convention in a time "when massiveness is a plague of our society" is the opportunity that created "to do better things than continue to do so many other platforms."

Youth of the Church need to be confronted with basic questions, and given the opportunity to hear as the most significant voices of the day. Brown said, "if they are to find real meaning in the Church's older tradition in the Conference's theme, 'Jesus Is Lord'."

"In a day when social class seems to be undermining national life," Brown said, "youth deserve to be told something more than they already know."

"The entertainment world speaks loud and clear in our price," Brown said in explaining the scheduling of the Gladys McBebe Trio and vocalist Miriam Makeba, of South Africa, on the convention program.

LITTLE MAN ON CAMPUS



PROF SNARE ALWAYS MANAGES TO SCARE SOMEONE WITH ONE OF THOSE SUDDEN EXAMS OF HIS.

Worthiness of WUS Contribution Disputed

By Carol Eicher
A NY Student Govt. Analyst

In the last meeting of the ASPLU Legislature under the McIntyre administration, Carol S. and relinquished the gavel to the new first vice-president, Andy Urndal.

Over Asia World University Soc. vice was a primary topic for discussion. After a fierce competitive struggle, a motion was passed to appropriate \$300 from the ASPLU treasury for WUS.

In view of the fact that tuition is being raised \$100 next year, it is a bit unsettling to set their funds aside in this way.

One wonders if we will extract ASPLU money should be spent for those purposes which are not designated in the budget or which are not involved in the University's official program. When there is a surplus of \$300 a year available, the students naturally are inclined to turn the money channeled into activities which benefit PLU students. Is WUS such a channel?

The first obligation of ASPLU is

to its students. There should, of course, be an international emphasis as well, but wouldn't a program more directly involving the PLU students better serve the purpose?

This is not to suggest that we should replace WUS, which is, in fact, a very worthy program, but its potential far exceed the Legislature's realization here on campus.

Its scope here on campus could be broadened considerably to include more material (films, pamphlets, etc.) pertaining to the foreign students themselves and their needs, not merely a resume of the WUS program and its structure. In promoting a feeling of kinship with students abroad WUS would be far more likely to achieve its goal of one dollar per person, even without funds from the ASPLU.

In the final analysis, what good are gifts if friendship and understanding do not accompany them. Perhaps this is why a personal contribution by the students is more meaningful than to glibly pass the buck to our student treasury.

Not to end on a discouraging note, however, it is true that the ASPLU had a little landfall this year in fines amounting to \$1060. WUS is probably as good a cause as any for this "extra" money, but don't count on it for next year.

STELLA'S FLOWERS

Flowers for All Occasions

19173 PACIFIC AVE. LE. 7-0206

(Foot of Garfield) We Deliver

Centre Cleaners

WEEKDAYS 9-6 — SATURDAYS 10-5

415 Garfield St. LE. 7-4300

DICK'S BARBER SHOP

332 Garfield Street

(Only 50 steps from Hunter Hall)



Let's say for a minute, this is you.

Once you wear the gold bars of a second lieutenant in the United States Air Force, what's in store for you?

Well, you may fly an aircraft entrusted with a vital defense mission. Or you may lead a research team tackling problems on the frontier of knowledge. You'll be helping to run an organization that's essential to the safety of the free world.

Sounds like you'll be called on to shoulder a good deal of responsibility, doesn't it?

But when you come right down to it, that's what your college

years have been preparing you for. You've got ability and a good education. Now's the time to put them to work!

You'll have every opportunity to prove your talents in the Air Force. By doing so, you can put yourself and your country ahead.

If you're not already enrolled in ROTC, you can earn your commission at Air Force Officer Training School—a three-month course that's open to both men and women college graduates. To apply,

U.S. Air Force you must be within 210 days of graduation.



THE BASEBALL TEAM consists of: Row 1 (left to right), Ken Fredricks, Dave Haley, Al Hedin, Steve Kinsland, Bob Buttermann, Ken Miller, Pete Quinn, Steve Nibelheimer. Second row, Ed Bowman, Rocky Hansen, Jerry Carson, Tim Sherry, Gary Haugen, Roe Hatten, Jim Olsen, Steve Dogleith. Third row, Rich Olson, Chris Howell, Dave Fenn, Doug Olson, Buster Harper, Ken Kuhner, Coach Ray Carlson.

PLU Divides Doubleheader

Pacific Lutheran baseballers took two conference victories in the last week. The first victory came Saturday against Western and they won another one from the University of Puget Sound on Tuesday.

In last Saturday's doubleheader the Lutes downed Western 5-2 in the opener and had P.S. 1-0 the second game.

Swinging at the first pitch, Jim Olson led off the second inning of the opener with a home run for the Lutes. Roe Hatten singled home Gary Hansen in the fifth and Marlin doubled home Pete Quinn in the seventh for what became the decisive tally in the final game.

Jack Eason scored the Lutes' only run in the second game on a walk in the fourth inning.

On Tuesday the Lutes split a doubleheader with the University of Puget Sound. The Lutes won the opener 10-3 and the Pups 200-1 the nightcap 3-2.

Pacific Lutheran sent 12 men to the plate in an eighth-inning 11-inning in the first game. Jack Eason led a three-run single to lead the Knights to their big victory. Rocky Hansen helped out by picking up two hits.

PLU could only pluck up two runs in the second tilt and they both came in the fifth inning. Pete Quinn and Roe Hatten mashed three hits each for the Lutes.

EVERGREEN CONFERENCE

Western Division

	W	L
Puget Sound	4	2
Western Wash.	4	2
Pacific Lutheran	2	6
Eastern Division		
Whitworth	4	2
Eastern Wash.	3	3
Central Wash.	3	5

Lute Women to Hold Track and Field Meet

The PLU Women's Intercollegiate Track and Field Meet will be held on Saturday, May 16. The field events begin at 1 p.m., while the track events begin at 1:30 p.m.

All PLU women are eligible to enter from one to five of the events. All entries must be received before May 14. The sign-up sheet is posted in the girls' locker room. One need to have a copy of your schedule. All types of abilities are welcome. Individual practices are now being held in the late afternoons between 3 and 5 p.m. Anyone needing equipment may check with Miss Vicki Ann Asha.

—The— Intramural Scene

Western, composed of a number of the PLU Athletic Department's Super Stars, have taken a 3-0 win-loss lead in the Intramural Softball League. The standings through May 3 are:

	W	L		W	L
Western	3	0	Ivy	1	2
Evergreen	2	1	1st Floor	1	2
3rd Floor	2	1	2nd Floor	0	3

The finalists in the Golf Tournament were John Templin and Herb Housefield, with Templin coming out the winner. In the Tennis Tournament, Jim Rable and Steve Nelson are pitted against Bill White and Rod Iverson for the doubles championship. In the singles tournament Jon Malmgren won over Curt Gammill. Horseshoes has Roe Hatten against Mike Leppelmoen for the crown. In the finals of the Badminton Tournament, Dave Ekberg and Bill Jurasz go against Glen Graham and Ron Ranheim. Enrik Tang and Jack Eason will pair off against each other for the singles crown.



GORDON STEWART is one of the four men who broke up the relay team record with a time of 200 seconds.

Lutes Take Meet; Peyton Wins 5

The Lutes defeated the University of Puget Sound and St. Martin's Tuesday in a triangular meet at PLU, but a UPS man stole the show.

The outstanding men for the Lutes in the running events were Gordy Stewart in the 440, Jay Haavik in the mile, and Arv Meyer in the 120 yard high hurdles. In the field events Larry Stevens, Craig Knutson and Verner Jorgenson all brought home first places.

Joe Peyton, a varsity letter winner in football, baseball and track at the University of Puget Sound, won five events. Peyton captured firsts in both sprints and the three jumps—high, broad and triple.

Lorry Carlson Rolls 603 for High Series

This week the "600" Club was presented to the city Range of the third place citizen Oscar with a 604, 366, 338-1728 series.

Larry Carlson rolled a 194, 194, 215-603 series to take the Individual hot dogon. Jim Stevens came close with a 186, 210, 197-593 series. Earl Scholand claimed the high game honors with Carlson as he beat his usual high series 194 to a 215 series. Rich Norberg, 204, Norm Nelson, 212, and Bruce Tharp, 200, also joined the "600" club this week.

The position round will be finished on May 17 and on that day the "600" Club (Larry Carlson, Jim Stevens and Norm Nelson) will host the Nite Inn (An Donald, Rich Norberg and Earl Ecklund).

The completed standings are: "600" Club, 404-115; Nebo, 36-16, Osten Ober, 31-21; Avengers, 27-20; Split, 27-25; Huskies, 26-26; Phiniques, 26-26; Club 45, 28-29; Pie Dancers, 21-31; Vikings, 21-31; Blow Hard, 17-34-34%; Wash-outs, 11-14.

HOWELL
Sporting Goods
THE BEST QUALITY IN ALL YOUR
SPORTING NEEDS
922 Commerce MA 7-5665

Marv Tommervik's

PARKLAND FUEL OIL SERVICE

CHEVRON GASOLINE
LUBRICATION

120th and Pacific Avenue

Phone LEnox 7-0256

Knights Drop Dual Meet To Portland St. College

Portland State College won 13 out of the 17 events Saturday to easily defeat PLU, 90½ to 53½. The Lutes managed to win only one of the running events, the three relays, while also taking victories in the three weight events. In the 100 yard dash the Lutes lost valuable points when Mike MacDonald pulled a muscle midway in the race. MacDonald will be lost for at least the next meet, if not for the rest of the season. This will be a heavy loss to the Knight tracklets.

Outstanding performance for the Lutes came in the shot put, where Larry Stevens finally got a school record. He put the iron ball 48 feet, 4½ inches, to break the old record by about a foot. In the other weight event, Craig Knutson won the discus with a fine throw of 140 feet, and Verner Jorgenson easily won the javelin with a fling of 223 feet, 4 inches.

Another school record came in the three-mile, which is a new event this year. Jay Haavik covered the 12-lap distance to win in a time of 15:54.1. This came after Haavik had placed second in the mile race.

Two excellent non-winning performances were turned in by the Lutes. Gary Melisenburg ran a 41.3 in the 220 intermediate hurdles, and Gordon Stewart ran a 51.1 quarter mile.

Tomorrow the Lutes face Western Washington and UPS next in a triangular meet at Bellingham.

Meet Results

100—1, Sirung (PS); 2, Spadis (PS); 3, Egeland (PLU); :10.1.

200—1, Strong (PS); 2, Egeland (PLU); 3, Spadis (PS); :22.0.

400—1, Walborg (PS); 2, Stuart (PLU); 3, Van Hooy (PS); 150.0.

800—1, McMillan (PS); 2, Haavik (PS); 3, Fuller (PS); 2:09.8.

1600—1, McMillan (PS); 2, Haavik (PS); 3, Arthur (PS); 4:37.1.

3 Mile—1, Haavik (PS); 2,

Fulmer (PS); 3, Mervil (PS); 15:39.3.

120 Hurdles—1, Howell (PS); 2, Curnow (PS); 3, Blaylock (PLU); :15.4.

60 Hurdles—1, Portland St. College (PS); 2, Van Hooy (PS); 3, Walborg (PS); :12.7.

440 Hurdles—1, Portland St. College (PS); 2, Van Hooy (PS); 3, Walborg (PS); :50.2.

Shot Put—1, Stevens (PLU); 2, Remsey (PS); 3, Knutson (PLU); 41 feet, 4½ inches.

Discus—1, Sirung (PLU); 2, Wall (PLU); 3, Remsey (PS); 140 feet.

Broad Jump—1, Daleympole (PS); 2, Erlander (PLU); 3, Spadis (PS); 20 feet, 11½ inches.

Triple Jump—1, Daleympole (PS); 2, Haavik (PLU); 3, Waddoups (PS); 43 feet, 3 inches.

High Jump—1, White (PS); 2, Albertson (PLU); 3, Taylor (PS) and Anderson (PLU) tied, 5 feet, 4 inches.

Pole vault—1, Bethke (PS); 2, Olsen (PLU); no third, 13 feet.

Javelin—1, Jorgenson (PLU); 2, Hewitt (PS); 3, Burkholder (PS); 223 feet, 4 inches.

Relay—1, Walborg (PS); 2, Sirung (PS); 3, Van Hooy (PS); 150.0.

4x100—1, McMillan (PS); 2, Haavik (PS); 3, Fuller (PS); 2:09.8.

4x200—1, McMillan (PS); 2, Haavik (PS); 3, Arthur (PS); 4:37.1.

4x400—1, Haavik (PS); 2,

JOHNSON'S DRUG

(All Students' Needs)

GARFIELD AT PACIFIC AVENUE

9 a.m. to 10 p.m. — 120 Sunday

PREScriptions — COSMETICS

Complete Camera Department

You're Someone Special . . .

We know that the moment you enter "LITTLE JOHN'S INN"

For example, we know a little about your tastes. You probably like good folk music, good food and people who share your tastes. Otherwise, you probably wouldn't come to "LITTLE JOHN'S."

Chances are you are a devotee of coffee . . . or will be once you've tried ours. That's why we take the extra care required in brewing the finest blends of coffee, from our most exotic roasting to our tamer types.

With your tastes in mind, we provide the finest folk artists and musicians available in a relaxed person-to-person atmosphere that's impressive enough for even the Special Date. We enjoy doing those things . . . We'd like you to think that we're pretty special, too.

LITTLE JOHN'S INN

5223 South Tacoma Way

"Home of the World's Shortest Giant"

Grand Opening

Saturday Night, May 9



LAST WEEK'S May Festival was again filled by folk dancing from around the world. Over 30 PLU students participated in the dancing and over 3500 people were in attendance. The picture to the right is of the first May Festival which was held out in



one of the buildings now called May Hall. The dances in the 1934 festival are being done the May 1964 dance.

TO THE POINT.

WLS Hold Sixth New Officers

Wednesday evening, April 21, at the annual Spring Banquet, new year's WLS hold their officers were announced.

They are: Judy Bergman, president; Karen Knott, vice-president; Wanda Undersch, Secretary; Barbara K. Anderson, treasurer; Vicki Miller, social chairman, and Robbie Grotter, publicity chairman. The office of regional chairman for the Northwest will be held by Vicki Miller.

Mrs Margaret Welleren was a guest at the banquet, to which was held in Chris Knudsen.

Montana Club Elects Officers

The members of the Montana Club elected new officers for the 1964-65 school year. The officers will be: president, John Traplin, a junior from Butte; vice-president, Terry Glazier, a freshman from Chambler; secretary-treasurer, Jim Zieger, a sophomore from Ellensburg; and social chairman, Marsha Larson, a freshman from Sidon.

PLU Coed Is Finalist in Posture Contest

Kathy Stenseth, a freshman from Seattle, was selected by the Central King County Chiropractic Association as one of two girls to represent King County in the Washington State Coed Posture Contest in Yakima July 10-11.

A total of 25 girls participated in the Sculling-Gymnastics contest April 30.

The winner of the state contest will receive a \$500 scholarship with \$200 and \$100 scholarship awards going to second and third place finishers.

"Gidget Goes Hawaiian" and "Cape Fear" Scheduled

Tonight the Campus Movies will present "Gidget Goes Hawaiian" in color at 7:30 and 9:30 p.m. This movie, filmed at the Royal Hawaiian Hotel on Waikiki Beach, stars James Darren, Michael Callan and Deborah Walley. Saturday night "Cape Fear," starring Gregory Peck, Robert Mitchum, and Polly Bergen, will be shown at the same times in A-101.

Nordics Appearing in Seattle

PLU's Nordic Trio, now at least temporarily out of school, is currently appearing at the Top of the Town in Seattle's Sorrento Hotel. The three musical comedians, "Horn" Flack, Phil Randoy and Bob Williams, will be there for two more weeks and then will return to Hollywood where they will make two records that will be released this summer.



PLU was not alone in its clean-up campaign. The community of Parkland also held a "clean the community" drive. Pictured above is a fire truck near Delta Hall to clear away some of the uncharitable trash in the area. Parkland firemen also burned down one of the old buildings on Garfield Street in front of Hurst Hall.

FREE milkshake with presentation of this coupon and purchase of one of our fine Burger Baskets



PARKLAND TRIPLE X DRIVE-IN

11811 Pacific Avenue

Phone LE 7-3211

New Knights Knighted For Campus Service

by Bob Rummel

The new pages of Knights Olypmics opened their "year" of service, membership and loyalty by helping the admissions office with the escort Youth on Campus Day, April 26. The new pages are Paul Arthur, Tom Andes, Brad Barnes, Craig Berland, Jerry Correll, Bob Erickson, Clinton Erickson, Dale Fenn, Lewy Oden, Dena Halmann, Paul Johnson, Tim Tamm, Alton Larson, Melvin McElroy, Richard Nuss, Terry Olivetti, Paul Olson, Ronald Olson, Doug Olsen, Dave Simmons, Marlene Sutam, Lucy Uzman, and Gordon Wahne.

In order to qualify for membership, a Knight has to be a freshman with a minimum grade point of 2.3, and with the approval of the present membership.

HEAR KENT ISSENDIG PERSON THE MUSIC OF

HENRY PURCELL

SUNDAY, MAY 17, AT 8:00 P.M.
IN EASTVOLD AUDITORIUM
(Paid for by Payin' It In Fund Society)

Term Papers Typed and Proof Read

MARY JANE MONK

CLATS WASH 474-3000
FREE PICK-UP AND DELIVERY

ALL SIZES, MEN'S & BOYS



**TENNIS
SHOES**

\$2.99

**BLACK OR WHITE!
CUSHION INSOLES!**

Open Daily, 7 to 9; Sunday, 10 to 6

SEYMOUR'S

51714 Pacific Avenue

FREE FRONT-DOOR PARAPAN

\$ \$ \$ \$ \$

Cash for Books

**whether used on this campus or
not . . . half price for PLU books
to be used again . . . published
wholesale prices for all others.**

\$ Sell 'em at

PLU Bookstore

**If money grew
on trees
everyone could
finish college**

You don't have a money tree in your back yard, but there is money available for college educations.

If you need money to help you finish college, investigate one of our Educational Loan Plans, or ask your parents to learn the details. Talk to the friendly people in any of our branches about a low cost, easy to handle college loan.



**PUGET SOUND
NATIONAL BANK**
PARKLAND BRANCH
12212 Pacific Avenue